

**BY-LAWS
OF
LAKE SAINT LOUIS COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION**

* * * * *

**ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS**

Section 1. "Association" shall mean and refer to the Lake Saint Louis Community Association, a not-for-profit corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri.

Section 2. "The Properties" shall mean and refer to properties which have been subjected to Lake Saint Louis Declaration(s) of Covenants and Restrictions by instrument(s) recorded in St. Charles County, Missouri.

Section 3. The terms "Common Properties" and "Common Ground" are equivalent and are each defined as tracts of land which are reserved for common use and enjoyment of the owners of The Properties. The Common Properties and Common Ground shall consist of those tracts of land heretofore or hereafter dedicated as such by the Board of Directors of Lake Saint Louis Community Association by their reference to a tract of land as such in a recorded plat or in a recorded deed.

Section 4. "Chairman" shall mean the President of the Community Association or such members of the Community Association Board of Directors elected by the Board to serve as the Chairman.

Section 5. "Inspectors" shall mean one or more persons or an entity appointed by the Chairman. The Chairman of the meeting, in his or her absolute discretion, may appoint one or more Inspectors of Election (the "Inspectors") to serve at any meeting of the Association where an election is to be held.

Section 6. "Master List" shall mean the list of Community Association members who are eligible and qualified to vote in the election as of the date of certification which is no later than thirty (30) calendar days before the election.

Section 7. "Certified Master List" shall mean the Chairman shall certify the "Master List" as containing those members who are eligible and qualified to vote in the election as of the date of certification.

**ARTICLE II
LOCATION**

Section 1. The principal office of the Association shall be located in Saint Charles County, Missouri.

**ARTICLE III
MEMBERSHIP**

Section 1. Every person or entity who is a record owner of a fee or undivided fee interest in any Lot or

Living Unit which is subject by covenants of record to assessments by the Association shall be a member of the Association, provided that any such person or entity who holds such interest merely as security for the performance of an obligation shall not be a member.

Section 2. The rights of membership are subject to the payment of annual and special assessments levied by the Association, the obligation of which assessments is imposed against each owner of and becomes a lien upon the property against which assessments are made as provided by the Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions to which The Properties are subject.

Section 3. The membership rights of any member whose interest in The Properties is subject to assessments under Article III, Section 2, whether or not such member be personally obligated to pay such assessments, are hereby automatically suspended by action of the Directors during the period when the assessments remain unpaid; but, upon payment of such assessments, such member's rights and privileges shall be automatically restored. The membership rights of any member, who is determined by the Directors to be in violation of any adopted and published rule or regulation interpreting, governing or relating to any covenant, restriction or agreement applicable to The Properties or who is determined to be in violation of any covenant, restriction or agreement applicable to The Properties, may be suspended by action of the Directors for a period not to exceed thirty days for any such violation. Additional suspension periods of up to thirty days may be imposed by the Directors for continuing violations. The membership rights of any such member who is in violation of any of the foregoing may be suspended as herein provided notwithstanding the fact that such member owns one or more Lots or Living Units which are not in violation of any of the foregoing. "The General Manager, Board of Director President or Board of Director Vice President, hereinafter referred to as CA representatives, shall have the authority to order any person to cease and desist from using any Community Association amenity and to immediately vacate any Community Association owned property if such CA representative believes in good faith that such person is in violation of any rule, regulation, by-law or covenant and restriction of the Community Association. The CA representative making such order shall have authority to revoke such person's amenity rights and/or order them to remain off of Community

LSLCA BY-LAWS

Association owned property for a period of time not to exceed 30 days or until the next meeting of the Board of Directors, whichever shall first occur. Such order shall be at the discretion of such CA representative and shall not be subject to an appeal except to the Board of Directors. Any person, who shall fail to immediately comply with such order by such CA representative, or by the Board of Directors, shall be deemed to be trespassing on Community Association property and shall be subject to arrest for such trespass.

ARTICLE IV VOTING RIGHTS

Section 1. Members shall be all those owners as defined in Article III, Section 1. Members shall be entitled to one vote for each Lot or Living Unit in which they hold the interests required for membership by Article III, Section 1. When more than one person holds such interest or interests in any Lot or living Unit all such persons shall be members, and the vote for such Lot or Living Unit shall be exercised as they among themselves determine, but in no event shall more than one vote be cast with respect to any such Lot or Living Unit.

Section 2. For purposes of determining the votes allowed under this Section, when Living units are counted, the Lot or Lots upon such Living Units are situated shall not be counted.

Section 3. There shall be no cumulative counting.

Section 4. No member who is the sole or joint owner of any lot or living unit for which there was an unpaid delinquent assessment as to the date of final certification of the Master List as provided in Article XI shall be allowed to cast any vote. Delinquency on any lot or living unit by a member shall disqualify that member from casting any vote even if such member is paid up on other lots or living units.

ARTICLE V ENJOYMENT OF COMMON PROPERTY

Section 1. Each member shall be entitled to the use and enjoyment of the Common Properties and facilities in accordance with the Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions applicable to The Properties and subject to the limitations in Article V, Section 3, below and Article III herein.

Section 2A. Any member not residing on the property may delegate his rights of enjoyment in the Common Properties and facilities to the members of his family who reside upon The Properties or to any of his one tenant and his/her blood relatives who reside thereon under a leasehold interest for a term of one year or more. Such delegation shall be given in writing to the

Board of Directors of the Community Association in order for such delegation to be effective.

Section 2B. In the event any Lot or Living Unit is owned of record by a corporation, then the corporation may delegate its rights of enjoyment in the Common Properties and facilities to one person & the members of his family, provided that such person is either a stockholder, director, or employee of the corporation. In no event shall stockholders, directors, or employees of the corporation be vested with such rights merely because of their position as such.

Section 3. In the event that any Lot of Living unit is owned of record by more than one person as tenants in common or joint tenants (as distinguished from tenants by the entireties), then only one of such owners and the members of his family who reside upon The Properties shall be entitled to use and enjoy the Common Properties and facilities. All other such owners shall be entitled to use the Common Properties and facilities only as guests under applicable rules and regulations adopted by the Board of Directors.

Section 4. Any member who shall delegate his rights of enjoyment under Sections 2 & 3 above shall notify the Secretary in writing of the name of any such person and the relationship of the member to such person. The rights and privileges of such person are subject to suspension under Article III, Section 3, to the same extent as those of the member.

Section 5. That as additional fees for the use of the Common Properties, the following fees are imposed upon members delinquent in payment of assessments:

- (a) A late fee of \$50.00 for any assessment which remains delinquent as of April 2nd of each year, or delinquent as of the date upon which the assessment is due as set by the Board of Directors.
- (b) Any and all lien fees and costs incurred by the Association of recordation and/or release of any lien placed upon a member's property.
- (c) Any and all costs of collection including but not limited to collection agency fees, legal costs and court costs.

All costs referenced in subsections (a), (b), and (c) shall be assessments against the delinquent member and that member's lot and shall be imposed and collected in the manner as provided for regular assessments.

ARTICLE VI BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1. The property, business and affairs of the Association shall be managed and controlled by its Board of Directors.

Section 2. The Board of Directors shall consist of six members of the Association who shall be divided into

LSLCA BY-LAWS

three classes in respect to term of office, each class to contain two members. At each annual meeting of the members, one class of Directors shall be elected to serve until the annual meeting of members held three years next following and until their successors shall be elected and qualified under applicable election rules. Each Director or any candidate for the office of Director shall be a member of the Association in good standing, shall be limited to serving on the CA Board for not more than three (3) terms, and is limited to serving as president of the Board for three (3) years. shall not be delinquent in the payment of any assessment or in the performance of any legal obligation owed to the Association, shall not be an officer, director, shareholder or employee of any corporation or other legal entity which is delinquent in the payment of any assessment or in the performance of any legal obligation owned to the Association, (if a candidate for the office of Director) shall not currently be a Director unless running for re-election for that class of Director, and shall not be a party personally or, be an officer, director, shareholder, member, or employee of a party in any legal action initiated by same member or entity wherein the Community Association is an adversary position to that member or entity. Removal of any unqualified Director or removal of any unqualified candidate for the office or Director shall be immediate upon approval of a majority of the remaining Directors.

Section 3. Vacancies in the Board of Directors shall be filled by a majority of the remaining Directors, though less than a quorum, to hold office during the unexpired term of their predecessors.

ARTICLE VII

ELECTION OF OFFICERS: NOMINATING COMMITTEE

Section 1. At all meetings of members of the Association called for the purpose of electing Directors of the Association and/or for other valid purposes, the voting for Directors of the Association shall be in person and/or by mail. Voting by proxy for the purpose of electing Directors of the Association shall not be permitted.

Section 2. In all meetings of the members of the Association called for the purpose of electing Directors of the Association and/or for other valid purposes, voting, except for Directors of the Association, shall be in person. Voting by proxy shall not be permitted, except to the extent permitted and in accordance with any election rules promulgated by the Board of Directors.

Section 3. The conduct and procedure regarding any elections held at meetings of members of the

Association shall be specified in election rules promulgated by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE VIII

SPECIAL RULES REGARDING ELECTIONS OF DIRECTORS.

Section 1. Definitions. "Chairman" shall mean the President of the Community Association or such members of the Community Association Board of Directors elected by the Board to serve as the Chairman. "Inspectors" shall mean one or more persons or an entity appointed by the Chairman as indicated in ARTICLE XIII Section 1.

Section 2. Use of Proxies. Except as specified below, the use of proxies shall not be permitted in elections of the members of the Association.

Section 3. In any election for Directors, members may either vote in person or by mail. To vote by mail, a member must mark his or her vote on the Official Ballot included with a notice of election mailed to each member, sign the ballot, and mail the Official Ballot. With the approval of the Chairman, the Inspectors may institute a "double envelope" or similar system to provide for more confidentiality regarding the Official Ballots that are to be mailed by members.

Section 4. Official Ballots will be numbered, and each member must vote on the Official Ballot mailed to that member, and on no other ballot. Copies of Official Ballots may not be used.

Section 5. In the event that a member loses his or her Official Ballot, a Replacement Official Ballot may be obtained at the Community Association Office during regular office hours or at the membership meeting. The person so requesting a Replacement Official Ballot must sign a statement setting forth that his or her Official Ballot was lost or was not timely received in the mail, and agreeing that the Member's Official Ballot shall be void and of no effect. If both the Official Ballot and Replacement Ballot of a member are voted by mail, the Member's Official Ballot shall be rendered invalid and shall not be counted, and the member to whom the ballot belongs shall not be permitted to vote in person.

Section 6. All Official Ballots and Replacement Official Ballots which members wish to be voted by mail must be received at the address noted on the ballot by 5:00 p.m. on the day of the election or else they shall be rendered invalid and shall not be counted. If an Official Ballot is timely received by the Inspectors, then the members voting by mail shall be precluded from voting in person. If an Official Ballot which has been mailed by a member has not been timely received by the Inspectors, then the member may request a Replacement Official Ballot from the inspectors at the

LSLCA BY-LAWS

membership meeting. Once received, the Inspectors shall retain the Official Ballot box immediately prior to the close of the polls on the evening of the election.

Section 7. Any Official Ballot or Replacement Official Ballot that is not signed and presented or mailed by the member to whom it was sent shall be invalid and shall not be counted.

Section 8. Failure to sign and print the member's name in a legible fashion shall render any Official Ballot invalid and the ballot shall not be counted.

Section 9. Any Official Ballot upon which ambiguous markings have been placed regarding the vote for candidates for Directors shall be invalid and shall not be counted.

Section 10. The Inspectors shall be the final arbitrator of whether any member is qualified to vote and shall be the final arbitrator regarding all issues concerning the validity and vote of all Official Ballots and Replacement Official Ballots.

ARTICLE IX

RULES OF ELECTION FOR BOARD DIRECTOR

That the Resolution regarding rules of election adopted on July 25, 1989, and amended on December 21, 1993, is hereby made a part of the By-Laws. Any provisions of the By-Laws inconsistent with said Resolution of December 21, 1993, are hereby repealed.

Section 1. That any member wishing that their name appear on the ballot for an annual Board of Directors election shall submit their name on a form provided by the Community Association Office not earlier than 9:00 a.m. on the first business day of August prior to said election and not later than 5:00 p.m. on the last business day of August prior to said election.

Section 2. No person may withdraw their name from the election ballot later than 5:00 p.m. on the second Friday of September prior to the election, and anyone withdrawing their name from the ballot after the last business day of August prior to the election cannot have their name reinstated on the ballot. All requests for removal of the candidate's signature must be witnessed by a member of the Community Association staff or a Notary Public.

Section 3. Candidate resumes must conform to the space and format requirements of the form provided by the Community Association office staff. Candidate resumes must be submitted no later than 5:00 p.m. on the last business day of August prior to the election.

ARTICLE X

SPECIAL RULES REGARDING ELECTIONS

FOR ANNUAL OR SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS AND OTHER ELECTIONS (EXCEPT DIRECTOR'S ELECTIONS):

Section 1. In these elections, members may either vote in person or by proxy. To vote by proxy, a member must sign his or her Official Ballot included with a notice of election mailed to each member and shall designate thereon the person or entity to whom they have given their proxy and the conditions of said proxy, if any. Members may designate the Community Association Board of Directors as the entity to whom they have given their proxy and may mail any Official Ballot so designated to the Inspectors who will realize said Official Ballots to the Community Association Board for voting prior to the closing of the polls.

Section 2. Official Ballots will be numbered, and each member must use the Official Ballot mailed to that member. Copies of Official Ballots may not be used.

Section 3. In the event that a member loses his or her Official Ballot, a Replacement Official Ballot may be obtained at the Community Association Office during regular office hours or at the membership meeting. The person so requesting a Replacement Official Ballot must sign a statement setting forth that the Official Ballot was lost, and agreeing that the Member's Official Ballot shall be void and of no effect. If both the Official Ballot and Replacement Ballot of a member are signed and placed in the Official Ballot box, the Member's Official Ballot shall be rendered invalid and shall not be counted.

Section 4. In the event that a member wishes to revoke his or her previously-given proxy designation on an Official Ballot and vote in person at the Membership meeting, then that member must execute a Proxy Revocation Statement to revoke the previously-given proxy designation on his/her Official Ballot and to void his or her previously-issued Official Ballot. Thereupon, the member shall be given a Replacement Official Ballot to be voted in person by that person. Any Official Ballot so revoked and voided by the member shall not be counted if it is voted or in the Official Ballot box, notwithstanding any other provisions herein.

Section 5. With the exception of the provisions of Article X, (Section 1) herein, persons who have been designated on any Official Ballot as the member's proxy shall deliver said Official Ballot to the Inspectors on the evening of the election for verification designated by the Inspectors and approved by the Chairman. After verification and processing as the member's proxy shall be eligible to place the voting portion of the Official Ballot into the Official Ballot box maintained by the Inspectors.

Section 6. Any Official Ballot or Replacement

LSLCA BY-LAWS

Official Ballot that is not signed by the member to whom it was sent shall be invalid and shall not be counted.

Section 7. Failure to sign and print the member's name in a legible fashion shall render any Official Ballot invalid and the ballot shall not be counted.

Section 8. Any Official Ballot upon which ambiguous markings have been placed regarding the vote on any matter shall be invalid and shall not be counted.

Section 9. The Inspectors shall be the final arbitrator of whether any member is qualified to vote, of whether a person has been properly designated as the member's proxy, of whether a proxy designation has been properly revoked and shall be the final arbitrator regarding all issued Ballots and Replacement Official Ballots.

ARTICLE XI GENERAL RULES REGARDING VOTING PROCEDURES

Section 1. The Community Association shall maintain a master list of Community Association members (the "Master List"). Prior to its transfer to the Inspectors, the Master List shall be in the possession or control of the General Manager of the Community Association and shall be available for review by any Community Association member at a reasonable time in the Community Association office.

Section 2. Not later than six weeks (42 calendar days) before the election, the Chairman of the Board of Directors shall certify the Master List as containing the names of those members who are eligible and qualified to vote in the election as of the date of the certification ("Certified Master List"). Thereafter, any amendments, revisions or changes to the Certified Master list must be specifically approved in writing, signed and dated by the Chairman of the Board of Directors and attached to the Certified Master List. After the date of certification, the payment of past due assessments by members shall not render such member eligible to vote. However, bonifide clerical errors may be considered by the Chairman in determining whether or not to allow an amendment of the Certified Master List. On the day of the certification by the Chairman, the General Manager shall transfer the certified Master List to the Election Judge who shall retain custody of it. The Election Judge shall be a professional accountant appointed by the Board of Directors. The General Manager shall cause election ballots to be mailed to members eligible

and qualified to vote in the election at least 30 days prior to the election.

Section 3. The Community Association staff shall be responsible for the printing of Official Ballots and Replacement Official Ballots in accordance with the form of Official Ballots and Replacement Official Ballot specifically approved by the chairman. The Community Association staff shall obtain from the printer of such ballots all originals and any extras, discarded or wasted ballots and shall count all of these ballots. After the mailing to the members of their Official Ballots by the Community Association staff, all remaining ballots except for specified Replacement Official Ballots shall be delivered to the Inspectors who shall maintain control over all unused ballots at all times.

Section 4. The Certified Master List shall be used by the CA staff for purposes of mailing the notice of election, any materials pertaining to the election and the Official Ballot(s) to those members on the Certified Master List. The Community Association Staff shall send any statements from members requesting a Replacement Official Ballot to the Inspectors.

Section 5. On the evening of the membership meeting, members who are listed on the Certified Master List may vote in person upon bringing with them their Official Ballot to the meeting. To avoid undue delay in calling to order the membership meeting, members who wish to vote in person are encouraged to pre-register their Official Ballot with the Inspectors beginning at 6:30 p.m. on the evening of the election.

Section 6. Members wishing to vote in person shall present their Official Ballot (or Replacement Official Ballot) to the Inspectors who: shall inspect the Official Ballot and the signature and printed name thereon; shall cross-check the Official Ballot with the Certified Master List and note the presentation of the Official Ballots thereon; shall issue any Replacement Official Ballots pursuant to these rules if requested; shall complete any other necessary control procedures established by the Inspectors and approved by the Chairman; shall separate the signature portion of the Official Ballot from the voting portion of the Official Ballot and shall affix a sticker over the voting portion of the Official Ballot covering the control number thereon; shall return the voting portion of the Official Ballot to the member, retain the signature portion of the Official Ballot and, at that time or thereafter, observe the member placing the Official Ballot in the Official Ballot box maintained by the Inspectors.

Section 7. The Chairman shall call the meeting to order to determine whether a quorum is present. In the

LSLCA BY-LAWS

case of an election of Directors, Official Ballots received by mail shall be counted as members present for purposes of declaring a quorum for the election of directors.

Section 8. When the meeting has been called to order, or within such time period as the Chairman shall set in keeping with the number of members wishing to vote in person, the Chairman shall order the Inspectors to stop registering Official Ballots of Members who wish to vote in person.

(a) After conducting such business as the chairman shall determine, the meeting shall be recessed by the Chairman for such time as is necessary for all eligible and qualified members to mark the ballot portion of their Official Ballots and place same in the Official Ballot box to be maintained by the Inspectors. After the voting has been completed, the Chairman shall reconvene the meeting and, upon approval by the Inspectors, declare the polls closed. The meeting shall then be recessed while the Inspectors tabulate the ballots which have been placed in the Official Ballot box. The Inspectors shall tabulate the ballots in a separate room which will not be open to any person or member. Upon request of the Inspectors, the meeting shall be reconvened by the Chairman and the Inspectors shall present their report to the Chairman regarding the vote. Upon acceptance of their report by the chairman, the Chairman shall announce their results of the balloting.

ARTICLE XII

APPOINTMENT OF INSPECTORS

Section 1. Appointment of Inspectors. The Chairman of the meeting, in his or her absolute discretion, may appoint one or more Inspectors of Election (the "Inspectors") to serve at any meeting of the Association where an election is to be held. The Inspectors may adopt, with the approval of the Chairman, such additional procedures or regulations as they deem necessary to effectively carry out their duties.

ARTICLE XIII

CHAIRMAN AS FINAL ARBITRATOR

Section 1. Chairman as Final Arbitrator. Unless delegated in whole or in part to the Inspectors, the Chairman of the meeting shall be the final arbitrator of all questions or matters regarding the procedure or conduct of any election and shall be the person to receive any written protests filed by any candidate or member.

ARTICLE XIV

POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1. The Board of Directors shall have power:

(a) To call special meetings of the members whenever it deems necessary and it shall call a meeting at any time upon written request of one-fifth ($1/5$) of the voting membership, as provided in Article XVI,

(b) To appoint and remove at pleasure all officers, agents and employees of the Association, prescribe their duties, fix their compensation, and require of them such security of fidelity bond as it may deem expedient. No Board Director shall be hired as a paid employee for the LSLCA during the time they are serving on the Board and for a period of two years following his or her term on the Board. No immediate family member of a Board member shall be hired as a full time employee of the LSLCA during the time the Board member is serving.

(c) Assessments for any living unit are due and payable upon first occupancy or upon first conveyance of the living unit, whichever comes first. The Community Association staff will determine through the City of Lake Saint Louis when (an occupancy) a building permit has been issued for a living unit and will bill the owner accordingly.

(d) To adopt and publish rules and regulations governing the use of the Common Properties and facilities and the personal conduct of the members and their guests thereon.

(e) To establish where it deems necessary, in its sole discretion, charges, and fees for the use of any portions of the Common Properties and facilities.

(f) To operate, maintain, and control, for the benefit of members and other entities to use such facilities, any clubs, marinas, and related facilities owned by the Association.

(g) To enter into license agreements for the use of Common Properties as provided in the Covenants and Restrictions applicable to The Properties.

(h) To establish one or more accounts in banks selected by the Board of Directors into which all funds belonging to the Association shall be deposited, subject to withdrawal by those persons authorized from time to time by the Board of Directors.

(i) To provide exterior maintenance for lots and structures owned by the C.A..

(j) To enforce any and all covenants, restrictions, and agreements applicable to The Properties.

(k) To pay taxes, if any, on the Common Properties and facilities.

(l) To exercise for the Association all powers, duties, and authority vested in or delegated to the Association, except those reserved to the members in applicable Covenants and Restrictions and these By-Laws.

However, if the Board approves a new variance (new

LSLCA BY-LAWS

variance is any variance that has not occurred in the past three years) for an event or activity and if after the event has taken place, 10% of the total membership petitions the Board objecting to the event permitted by the variance, the variance/event is to be put to a vote of the membership on the October ballot for the election of Directors. If approved by a simple majority of the members who voted, the variance may be granted by a future Board. If not, it will not be approved by the Board nor will similar variances be approved by the Board of Directors in future years without a re-vote of the members approving the variance.

(m.) Deleted February 28, 2012.

(n) In the event that any member of the Board of Directors shall be absent from three consecutive regular meetings of the Board of Directors, the Board may by action taken at the meeting during which said third absence occurs, declare the office of said absent Director to be vacant.

(o) In the event any appointed member of any committee shall be delinquent in the payment of any assessment or legal obligation owed to the Association, he may be removed in the same manner as provided in Article VI, Section 2.

(p) No Common Properties or Common Ground, whether heretofore or hereafter dedicated as such, may be sold, leased or conveyed unless there shall have first been the affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the members voting in an election duly noticed and held with a quorum of one-fifth (1/5) of all the votes of the entire membership to seek approval of such sale or conveyance, and unless written notice of the proposed sale or conveyance is sent to every Member at least 90 days before such sale or conveyance.

Section 2. limitation of Powers of Individual Directors. The Directors shall act only as a board and an individual director shall have no power as such. Individual Board members of the Board of Directors refrain from intruding on administrative issues that are the responsibility of management, except to monitor the result and prohibit methods that conflict with board policy. Individual Directors participation in the day to day management of the CA is to be limited to monitor results and implementation of Board policy.

Section 3. Reserves. In order to maintain financial stability of the Community Association and ensure adequate funding is provided for major expenses the Board of Directors will be required to maintain and continue to fund the following three (3) reserves not to be commingled. It will be the responsibility of the public accountant of the Community Association to notify the Board and Membership if any rule defined

below is not followed. The three mandatory funds are: Dredging Reserve, Emergency Reserve & Assessment Reserve.

(a) Dredging at both lakes is to be considered maintenance and not a capital expense. The Board of Directors will maintain a separate Dredging Reserve account with funds to be used only for dredging and dredging related expenses, including the cost of silt removal. Yearly contributions shall be made to this fund in order to have sufficient funds in place to cover the expense of full lake dredges every 7th year .

(b) The Board of Directors will maintain a separate Emergency Reserve account with funds to be used only for emergency situations or any other uninsured or unplanned damage or loss. Including but not limited to protecting the L.S.L.C.A. interest in Lake Forest. Spending in response to an emergency is not subject to Section 5 spending limitations.

(c) The Board of Directors will maintain a separate Assessment Reserve account with funds to be used only to extend the time between assessment increases. This account is an accumulation of the remaining revenue from each year that after all costs (Administrative, Operating and Maintenance, Capital Maintenance and Improvements) and after contributions to mandatory Dredging and Emergency Reserves have been made. In the event that this account becomes insufficient to cover two (2) years of revenue shortfall the Board of Directors must propose an assessment increase.

Section 4. Allocation of Revenue:

To help ensure adequate funding is available for the ongoing operations, maintenance, and incremental improvements to LSLCA amenities, the Association's revenue shall be used to cover expenditures in the following order:

1. Administrative Cost, then
2. Operating and maintenance of all existing amenities and Common Properties, then
3. Contributing as required to

LSLCA BY-LAWS

- Dredging Reserve, then
4. Contributing as required to Emergency Reserve, then
 5. Up to 10% of total revenue may be used for Capital maintenance and improvements, but not more than the amount of revenue remaining after funding items 1 thru 4, and
 6. All remaining revenue to be added to the Assessment Reserve.

Section 5. Spending & Borrowing limitations:

Each of the following actions of the Board of Directors will require the affirmative vote of a majority of the Members voting in an election held to seek approval of the Board of Directors' proposed actions:

1. Require Member vote to buy or lease real estate in excess of \$250,000.
2. Require Member vote to place a mortgage on or similar financial obligation on any of the Common Properties or Common Grounds.
3. Require Member vote to spend in excess of \$250,000 annually on any single Capital expenditure or Capital Project.
4. Require Member vote to borrow in excess of \$500,000.

Section 6. Maintaining LSLCA Amenities:

The Board of Directors shall maintain LSLCA current amenities for the purposes they were designed and are being used as of January 1, 2012, and maintain any future amenities for the purposes they were designed and dedicated. With the exception of safety issues, any proposed material change in the purpose or use of amenities will require the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds (2/3) of the Members voting in an election held to approve such change.

Section 7. In the spirit of openness and clarity we will make available the following information:

- (a) The annual budget of the Association and a copy of the annual audit report shall be available to all Members to review within the C.A. Office during regular business hours.

- (b) The Board of Directors shall review at least every five years all staff salaries and benefits starting in 2016 with the goal to be sure they are in line with similar positions in other associations of our size.
- (c) Any recognized club whose activity is excluded from coverage under the C.A. general insurance policy shall obtain a policy of liability insurance identifying the C.A. as an additional named insured. Such policy shall be in such amount as may be required by the Board of Directors with a minimum amount of what the general liability Policy insures the C.A.

ARTICLE XV

DIRECTORS' MEETINGS

Section 1. A regular meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held without other notice than by this By-Law, immediately after, and at the same place as, the annual meeting of the members. The Board of Directors may provide, by resolution, the time and place, either within or without the State of Missouri, for the holding of additional regular meetings, with notice of such resolution to all Directors.

Section 2. Special Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held when called by written notice signed by a majority of a quorum. The notice shall specify the time and place of the meeting and the nature of any special business to be considered. The notice shall be given to each Director by one of the following methods: (a) by personal delivery; (b) written notice by first class mail, postage prepaid; or (c) by Electronic Notification. All such notices shall be given or sent to the Director's home address or email address as shown on the records of the Association. Notices when sent by first class mail shall be deposited into a United States mailbox at least three (3) days before the time set for the meeting. Notices given by electronic notification or by personal delivery shall be delivered at least twenty-four (24) hours before the time set for the meeting.

Section 3. The transaction of any business at any meeting of the Board of Directors, however called and noticed, or wherever held, shall be as valid as though made at a meeting duly held after regular call and notice if a quorum is present and, if either before or after the meeting, each of the Directors not present signs a written waiver of notice, or a consent to the holding of such meeting, or an approval of the minutes thereof. All such waivers, consents or approvals shall be filed with the corporate records and made part of the minutes of the meeting.

LSLCA BY-LAWS

Section 4. The majority of the Board of Directors shall constitute a quorum thereof; but if less than a majority of the Directors are present at any meeting, a majority of the Directors present may adjourn the meeting from time to time without further notice.

Section 5. Directors as such shall not receive any stated salaries for their services, but by resolution of the Board of Directors a fixed sum and expenses of attendance, if any, may be allowed for attendance at each regular or special meeting of the Board.

Section 6. The Board of Directors may, with approval of a majority of a quorum, adjourn a meeting and reconvene in executive session to discuss and vote upon personnel matters, litigation in which the Association is or may become involved, acquisitions of real property, and orders of business of a similar nature.

ARTICLE XVI

INDEMNIFICATIONS OF OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS AGAINST LIABILITIES AND EXPENSES IN ACTIONS

To the extent not paid or provided by available insurance coverage, all officers and directors of Lake St. Louis Community Association shall be entitled to indemnification of reasonable attorney's fees, reasonable cost of defense, actual damages and court costs resulting from a settlement approved by the Board of Directors of Lake St. Louis Community Association or from a judgment arising out of any claim or litigation if either:

- 1) The act or omission of the officer or director was done or omitted pursuant to an express instruction contained in a motion or resolution recorded in the minutes of the Board of Directors of Lake St. Louis Community Association; or
- 2) The Board of Directors of Lake St. Louis Community Association makes the following findings and votes by simple majority to authorize such indemnification:
 - (a) That such officer or director was in fact acting within the scope of their duties with Lake St. Louis Community Association at the time of such alleged act or omission giving rise to such claim or litigation; and
 - (b) That it appears to the Board of Directors of Lake St. Louis Community Association that such officer or director was acting in good faith to Lake St. Louis Community Association at the time of such alleged act or omission.

No officer or director shall be entitled to indemnification of punitive damages unless such punitive damages were awarded for a specific act or omission of the officer or director which was done or omitted pursuant to an express instruction contained in a motion or resolution recorded in the minutes of the

Board of Directors of Lake St. Louis Community Association and such person seeking indemnification of punitive damages did not participate in making such motion nor such resolution.

In regard to indemnification of attorney's fees, no officer or director shall be entitled to indemnification for attorney's fees for legal services that merely duplicate the legal services provided by the Community Association's insurance carrier or general counsel. Further, no officer or director shall be entitled to indemnification of attorney's fees unless such officer or director shall first request of the Board of Director's authorization for incurring such attorney's fees, which the Board of Directors shall not unreasonably deny if such independent legal services are reasonably necessary.

No officer or director shall be entitled to indemnification of any settlement paid or agreed to by such officer or director unless such settlement is specifically approved by the Board of Directors.

Any officer or director who believes he has been denied indemnification to which he is entitled under this By-Law shall have the right to appeal such decision by the Board of Directors to the Circuit Court of St. Charles County.

For the purpose of such vote by the Board of Directors, any director who is subject to such claim or litigation shall be disqualified from voting thereon, and as few as three directors may constitute a quorum to vote thereon if all other directors are so disqualified from voting. If there are less than three directors eligible to vote thereon, then the remaining eligible directors, if any, and the three member legal advisory committee of Lake Saint Louis Community Association shall together vote thereon by simple majority. If there is no such legal advisory committee in existence at the time of such vote, the General Counsel of Lake Saint Louis Community Association shall appoint three attorneys to act as such legal advisory committee for the purpose of such vote.

Once a Board of Directors has authorized a specific amount or formula of indemnification under this Article, a successor Board of Directors may not revoke or reduce such authorized indemnification except by formal amendment of this Article of the By-Laws.

The provisions of this article shall apply retroactively to all prior events and omissions which could give rise to liability as well as all future claims and litigation. Indemnification may be made available to past officers and directors as well as present officers and directors of Lake St. Louis Community Association.

LSLCA BY-LAWS

ARTICLE XVII COMMITTEES

Section 1. Other committees not having and exercising the authority of the Board of Directors in the management of the affairs of the Association may be designated by resolution adopted by the Board of Directors, to perform such duties and to have such powers as may be provided in the resolution.

Section 2. Each committee may adopt rules for its own government not inconsistent with the terms of the resolution of the Board of Directors designating the committee or with Article XXIV of the By-Laws or the Special Rules of Order adopted by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE XVIII OFFICERS

Section 1. The officers of the Association shall be a President, one or more Vice Presidents (the number thereof to be determined by the Board of Directors), a Secretary and a Treasurer. The Board of Directors may elect such other officers, including one or more Assistant Secretaries and one or more Assistant Treasurers, as it shall deem desirable, such officers to have the authority and perform the duties prescribed from time to time by the Board of Directors. Any two or more offices may be held by the same person, except the offices of President and Secretary. The President and at least one Vice-President shall be a Director of the Association. Other officers may be, but need not be, Directors of the Association.

Section 2. The officers shall be chosen by majority vote of the Directors annually by the Board of Directors within one month following the date of the regular annual meeting of the member. A president pro-tem, secretary pro-tem and treasurer pro-tem shall be chosen by majority vote of the Directors at a special meeting of the Directors held immediately following the regular annual meeting. These pro-tem officers shall serve until the permanent officers of the Association are chosen. Each officer shall hold office until his successor shall have been duly elected. A vacancy in any office arising because of death, resignation, removal or otherwise shall be filled by the Board of Directors for the unexpired portion of the term.

Section 3. Any officer may be removed by the Board of Directors whenever, in its judgment, the best interests of the Association will be served thereby.

Section 4. The officers of the Association shall, except as otherwise provided by law, by the Articles of Incorporation of the Association, by these By-Laws, or by the Board of Directors, each have such powers and duties as generally pertain to their respective offices, as

well as such powers and duties as may from time to time be specifically conferred or imposed by the Board of Directors.

Section 5. The majority of the Directors of the Association in session may appoint from time to time members of the Association in good standing as special officers as the Board may deem desirable with the authority to perform such duties as prescribed by the Board. The officers appointed under this section need not necessarily be a Director of the Association.

ARTICLE XIX CERTIFICATES

Section 1. The Board of Directors may provide for the issuance of identification cards along with automobile decals evidencing membership to the Association. The Board of Director's may change this system as new technology becomes available. If any Identification Card shall become lost, mutilated, or destroyed, a new Identification Card may be issued therefore upon such terms and conditions as the Board of Directors may determine.

ARTICLE XX CORPORATE SEAL

Section 1. The Board of Directors shall provide a corporate seal, which shall be in the form of a circle and shall have inscribed thereon the name of the corporation and the words "Corporate Seal - Missouri".

ARTICLE XXI AMENDMENTS

Section 1. These By-Laws may be altered, amended, or repealed and new By-Laws adopted by the Board of Directors. Furthermore, any change to these By-Laws will require a Member election held to approve such change and an affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast or a greater percentage if required by law.

Section 2. In the case of any conflict between the Articles of Incorporation and these By-Laws, the Articles shall control; and in the case of any conflict between the Covenants and Restrictions applicable to The Properties and these By-Laws, the Covenants and Restrictions shall control.

ARTICLE XXII MEETINGS OF MEMBERS

Section 1. The regular annual meeting of the members shall be held on the third Monday in October in each year, at the hour of 8:00 o'clock p.m. If the day of the annual meeting of the members shall fall upon a

LSLCA BY-LAWS

holiday, the meeting will be held at the same hour on the first day following which is not a holiday.

Section 2. Special meetings of the members for any purpose may be called at any time by the Board of Directors, or upon written request of the members who have a control of one-fifth ($\frac{1}{5}$) of all of the votes of the entire membership.

Section 3. Notice of any meetings shall be given to the members by the Secretary. Notice may be given to the member either personally, or by sending a copy of the notice through the mail, postage thereon fully prepaid, to his address appearing on the books of the Association. Each member shall register his address with the Secretary, and notices of meetings shall be mailed to him at such address. Notice of any meeting, regular or special, shall be mailed at least six (6) days in advance of the meeting and shall set forth in general the nature of the business to be transacted, provided, however, that if the business of any meeting shall involve any action governed by the Articles of Incorporation or by the Covenants applicable to The Properties, notice of such meeting shall be given or sent as therein provided.

Section 4. For any action governed by these By-Laws, one-tenth ($\frac{1}{10}$) of the number of eligible votes entitled to be cast at any meeting of the members unless otherwise specified, whether such votes are to be cast in person, or if permitted, by mail, shall constitute a quorum. Any action governed by the Articles of Incorporation or by the Lake Saint Louis Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions applicable to The Properties shall require a quorum as therein provided.

ARTICLE XXIII RULES OF ORDER

Section 1. The rules contained in the current edition of 21st Century Robert's Rules of Order, 1995 (ISBN 0-440-21722-9) shall govern the Community Association in all cases to which they are applicable and in which they are not inconsistent with these By-Laws and any Special Rules of Order the Community Association may adopt.

ARTICLE XXIV SPECIAL RULES OF ORDER

WHEREAS, the Community Association Board of Directors wishes to promote harmony and order while maintaining a degree of precedence while in assembly or committee, do now resolve to adopt Special Rules of Order which superseded any rules in the parliamentary authority with which they may conflict. To wit:

Rule 1. Before a member in an assembly can make a

motion or speak in debate he/she must obtain the floor.

Rule 2. The presiding officer may exercise the same rights of individual members in debate without relinquishing the chair.

Rule 3. Members do not need to stand to address the chair. Raising of a hand is sufficient recognition to indicate a desire to obtain the floor.

Rule 4. The chair need not rise to signal limit of debate, to put a question, or to rule on a point of order.

Rule 5. Members may speak more than twice to the same question on the same day at the pleasure of the chair.

Rule 6. Members, having obtained the floor while a debatable motion is immediately pending, can speak no longer than five minutes unless he/she obtains consent of the chair. If the member disagrees with the time limit imposed by the chair then he/she may obtain consent of the assembly by means of a motion to Extend Limits of Debate which requires a two-thirds ($\frac{2}{3}$) vote without debate.

Rule 7. Main motions must be seconded and restated by the chair to open debate.

ARTICLE XXV CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

The word "Fiduciary" is defined as referencing any of the following: (A) Member of the board of Directors; (B) Candidate for the Board of Directors; (C) Legal Counsel; (D) salaried employees.

No Fiduciary shall participate in discussions, influence or vote on any decision when there is reasonable reason to believe that the decision may result in a gain personally, professionally, legally, or result in financial gain or loss to a Fiduciary, to a Fiduciary's spouse, to any individual related to the Fiduciary, or to any business with which the Fiduciary is associated.

The phrase "business with which the Fiduciary is associated" is defined as any of the following: (A) Any sole proprietorship owned by the Fiduciary, the Fiduciary's spouse, to any individual related to the Fiduciary. (B) Any partnership or joint venture in which the Fiduciary, the Fiduciary's spouse or any individual related to the fiduciary, is a partner, other than as a limited partner or a limited partnership, any corporation of limited partnership in which the Fiduciary is an officer or Director or of which either the Fiduciary, the Fiduciary's spouse or any individual related to the Fiduciary, whether singularly or collectively, owns in excess of ten (10) percent of the outstanding shares of any class of stock or partnership units; (C) Any trust in which the Fiduciary is a trustee or settler or in which the Fiduciary, the Fiduciary's spouse or any individual related to the Fiduciary,

LSLCA BY-LAWS

whether singularly or collectively, is the beneficiary or holder of a reversionary interest ten (10) percent or more of the corpus of trust; (D) Any entity in which the Fiduciary, Fiduciary's spouse or any individual related to the fiduciary, is also a director, officer, shareholder, member or employee with which the Community Association might litigate or have a contractual relationship.

Every member of the Board of Director, every candidate for the Board of Directors, legal counsel, and salaried employees shall provide the general Manager written disclosure with the name and address of each employer, business, personal organizations and professional organizations with which they are associated. This disclosure is required condition of employment of legal counsel and salaried employees. Every current member of the Board of Directors, legal counsel, and salaried employees, shall provide such disclosure within one month after the date that this resolution is adopted. Every candidate for the Board of Directors shall provide such disclosure at the time that they file their candidacy. Every present and future member of the Board of Directors, legal counsel and salaried employees shall provide an updated disclosure within one month after each election, whether or not they were candidates in such election, and at any time as they have a change of employment, business, or organizational relationship with which they are associated.

Failure by any Director, Candidate of the Board, Legal Counsel, or Salaried Employee to provide full disclosure as described above may result in removal or dismissal by a majority vote of the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE XXVI

ARCHITECTURAL CONTROL FEES

Section 1. A processing fee of \$75.00 shall be paid by applicants for new home construction review by the Architectural Control Committee. A processing fee of \$25, shall be paid by applicants for other types of review, excluding color review, by the Architectural Control Committee.

Section 2. A fee of up to \$1,000 per month shall be paid by each person or entity who shall commence new home construction without approval of the Board of Directors or the Architectural control Committee. A fee of \$100 per month, shall be paid by each person or

entity, who shall commence any other type of construction including/or alteration governed by Architectural Control Guidelines without approval of the Board of Directors or the Architectural Control Committee. Such fee shall be paid on the date that construction commences and on the same day of each succeeding month until approval is given by the Board of Directors or the Architectural Control Committee. The phrase "commence construction" for the purpose of this Resolution shall mean the first date on which physical alteration of the lot takes place.

Changes made to the By-Laws

Adopted on the 14th day of July, 1967.

**January 1, 1971, amended COMMITTEES, Section 4
Amended Section 1 AMENDMENTS.**

February 24, 1971, adopted Subsection 2 b of Section 2, PROPERTY RIGHTS & RIGHTS OF ENJOYMENT OF COMMON PROPERTY.

February 3, 1977, adopted Section DIRECTORS' MEETINGS.

April 14, 1977, added Subsection s & t of Section 1, POWERS & DUTIES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

September 15, 1977, Rescinded Section 4, COMMITTEES.

LSLCA BY-LAWS

Rescinded Section 1, AMENDMENTS.

December 15, 1977, amended Subsection c of Section 1, POWERS & DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

June 1, 1978, added Subsection u of Section 1, POWER & DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

September 21, 1978, adopted Section 2, OFFICERS.
Adopted Section 2, BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

February 21, 1979, added entire Article INDEMNIFICATION.

March 20, 1979, adopted Section 5, OFFICERS.

October 25, 1979, amended Section 2 BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

January 21, 1986, amended Section 2, DIRECTOR'S MEETINGS.

Added Section 6, DIRECTORS' MEETINGS.

June 17, 1988, amended Subsection c of Section 1, POWERS & DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

October 20, 1986, amended Section 2 PROXIES

October 27, 1987, amended Section 3, COMMITTEES.

Adopted entire Article, RULES OF ORDER.

June 20, 1989, amended Section 1, PROPERTY RIGHTS & RIGHTS OF ENJOYMENT OF COMMON PROPERTY.

Adopted Section 5 a & 5 b of Section 5, PROPERTY RIGHTS & RIGHTS OF ENJOYMENT OF COMMON PROPERTY.

Amended Section 2, BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

Amended Section 1, 2, & 3 of ELECTION OF DIRECTORS: OTHER ELECTIONS.

Added Subsection c to Section 1, POWERS & DUTIES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

Recinded Subsection s & t of Section 1, POWERS & DUTIES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

Amended Section 4, MEETINGS OF MEMEBERS.

Recinded both Section 1 & 2 PROXIES.

Rescinded entire article on, INDEMNIFICATION.

Added entire Article, INDEMNIFICATION OF OFFICERS & DIRECTORS AGAINST LIABILITIES & EXPENSES IN ACTIONS.

Amended Section 3, MEMBERSHIP.

August 25, 1989, amended Section 2, BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

Amended Section 1, 2, & 3, ELECTION OF DIRECTORS; OTHER ELECTIONS.

Technical correction Subsection c of Section 1, POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS...

May 18, 1993. Recinded Section 5 a PROPERTY RIGHTS & RIGHTS OF ENJOYMENT OF COMMON PEOPERTY.

July 20, 1993. Changes made on Article V. ENJOYMENT OF COMMON GROUND, Deleted Section 5 b platting fee \$250.

July 20, 1993. Added Article V. ENJOYMENT OF COMMON GROUND, Section 5.

Adding C & R to property fee \$1,000.

December 21, 1993. Amended Election rules added to them the rules dated 7\25\89.

Added Section 1-10 to Article VIII. SPECIAL RULES REGARDING ELECTIONS OF DIRECTORS.

Added Section 1-4 to Article IX. RULES OF ELECTION FOR BOARD DIRECTOR.

Added Section 1-9 to Article X. SPECIAL RULES

LSLCA BY-LAWS

REGARDING ELECTIONS FOR ANNUAL OR SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS AND OTHER ELECTIONS (EXCEPT DIRECTOR'S ELECTIONS.)

Added to Section 1-9 to Article XI. GENERAL RULES REGARDING VOTING PROCEEDURES.

Added Section to Article XII. APPOINTMENT OF INSPECTORS.

Added Section 1 to Article XIII. CHAIRMAN AS FINAL ARBITRATOR.

Add Section 5, 6, 7, & 8 to DEFINITIONS.

April 19, 1994, the provisions of Article XVI. INDEMNIFICATIONS OF OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS AGAINST LIABILITIES AND EXPENSES IN ACTIONS of the By-Laws of Lake Saint Louis Community Association regarding indemnification of officers and directors are hereby repealed.

The By-Laws of Lake Saint Louis Community Association are hereby amended by adding provisions to Article XVI. INDEMNIFICATIONS OF OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS AGAINST LIABILITIES AND EXPENSES IN ACTIONS.

August 16, 1994, that Article III. MEMBERSHIP. Section 3, of the By-Laws of Lake Saint Louis Community Association is hereby amended by the addition of the following provisions to Section 3. Authority to order any person to cease and desist from using CA amenities.

September 22, 1994, that Article IV. VOTING RIGHTS, is hereby amended by adding Section 4. Change to voting after certification of Master List.

April 18, 1995, that Article XI. GENERAL RULES REGARDING VOTING PROCEDURES, Section 2, of the By-laws is hereby repealed and replaced with section of Article XI. GENERAL RULES REGARDING VOTING PROCEDURES is changed certification of Master List date and payment of assessments.

July 18, 1995 that Article V. PROPERTY RIGHTS & RIGHTS OF ENJOYMENT OF COMMON GROUND, of the By-Laws is hereby amended by the addition of Section 6. Added late fee, lien fee, and

collection fee for delinquent accounts.

August 27, 1996, that Article IV. VOTING, Section 4 is amended. Changed voting rights if assessments are not paid on all properties.

October 22, 1996, that Article 1. DEFINITIONS Section 3, is amended. Definition of Common Properties and Common Ground.

Amended by the addition of Subsection (t) to Article XIV. POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS,. Limits Board repeal of subsection (t) related to sale conveyance of common ground.

October 22, 1996, addition of Section 1-5 to Article XXV. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.

November 26, 1996, revises Article XXIII, to include 21st edition of Robert's Rules of Order, (ISBN O-440-21722-9.)

Revises Article XIV, RULES OF ORDER, Section 1 to be include the word leased. "dedicated as such, may be sold, leased, or conveyed..."

Added to Article XIV. POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS. Section 2 Limitation of Powers of Individual Directors.

November 26, 1996, revises Article XXIII, to include 21st edition of Robert's Rules of Order, (ISBN O-440-21722-9.)

Adopted contents for the By-Laws defined in the 21st Century Edition of Robert's Rules of Order as a template for our By-Laws.

December 17, 1996, addition of Article XXVI. ARCHITECTURAL CONTROL FEES, Section 1 & Section 2 adopted fees for Architectural Control Reviews and fees for construction or alterations without approval of Architectural Control Committee or Board of Directors.

May 27, 1997 changed Article V. ENJOYMENT OF COMMON PROPERTY, Section 6 changed fees for past due assessments.

June 24, 1997 deleted words (per month) Article V.

LSLCA BY-LAWS

ENJOYMENT OF COMMON GROUND.

November 25, 1997 changed Article V. ENJOYMENT OF COMMON PROPERTY, Section 5 changed fees for past due assessments.

November 17, 1998 restated to properly reflect the actions of previous Board, Article XXI, Section 1. Changed Article V, Section 3. ENJOYMENT OF COMMON PROPERTY.

February 23, 1999, amended Section 2 of Article XXVI. ARCHITECTURAL CONTROL FEES and added section 3 to this article.

June 27, 2000, added Section 4 to Article VI BOARD OF DIRECTORS

September 23, 2003, revised Article XXVI section 1 ARCHITECTURAL CONTROL FEES changed to \$100.00 for new home construction.

December 23, 2008, revised Article III, section 3 To define current enforcement authority.

September 22, 2009, Membership Vote- Rescind any/all changes after July 1, 1997

February 28, 2012, added to Section 1 Article XXI. AMENDMENTS, Furthermore, any change to these By-Laws will require a Member election held to approve such change and an affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast or a greater percentage if required by law.

February 28, 2012, deleted Section 1 (q) Article XIV. POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, "Insofar as permitted by law, to do any other thing that, in the opinion of the Board of Directors, would promote the common benefit and enjoyment of the residents of The Properties.

February 28, 2012, added Section 3 Reserves Article XIV. POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, In order to maintain financial stability of the Community Association and ensure adequate funding is provided for major expenses the Board of Directors will be required to maintain and continue to fund the following three (3) reserves not to be commingled. It will be the responsibility of the public accountant of the Community Association to notify the Board and Membership if any rule defined below is not followed. The three mandatory funds are:

Dredging Reserve, Emergency Reserve & Assessment Reserve

(a) Dredging at both lakes is to be considered maintenance and not a capital expense. The Board of Directors will maintain a separate Dredging Reserve account with funds to be used only for dredging and dredging related expenses, including the cost of silt removal. Yearly contributions shall be made to this fund in order to have sufficient funds in place to cover the expense of full lake dredges every 7th year.

(b) The Board of Directors will maintain a separate Emergency Reserve account with funds to be used only for emergency situations, including but not limited to protecting the LSLCA interest in Lake Forest. This account shall be maintained at a minimum of \$1,000,000. In the event an emergency situation arises and money is used from this account it must be repaid in equal yearly payments in not more than 10 years, with a yearly repayment minimum of \$50,000 per year. Emergencies do not include dredging or other planned expenditures.

(c) The Board of Directors will maintain a separate Assessment Reserve account with funds to be used only to extend the time between assessment increases. This account is an accumulation of the remaining revenue from each year that after all costs (Administrative, Operating and Maintenance, Capital Maintenance and Improvements) and after contributions to mandatory Dredging and Emergency Reserves have been made. In the event that this account becomes insufficient to cover two (2) years of revenue shortfall the Board of Directors must propose an assessment increase.

February 28, 2012 added Section 4. Allocation of Revenue Article XIV. POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

To help ensure adequate funding is available for the ongoing operations, maintenance, and incremental improvements to LSLCA amenities, the Association's revenue shall be used to cover expenditures in the following order:

1. Administrative Cost, then
2. Operating and maintenance of all existing amenities and Common Properties, then

LSLCA BY-LAWS

3. Contributing as required to Dredging Reserve, then

4. Contributing as required to Emergency Reserve, then

5. Up to 10% of total revenue may be used for Capital maintenance and improvements, but not more than the amount of revenue remaining after funding items 1 thru 4, and

6. All remaining revenue to be added to the Assessment Reserve.

February 28, 2012 added Section 5. Spending & Borrowing limitations Article XIV. POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

Each of the following actions of the Board of Directors will require the affirmative vote of a majority of the Members voting in an election held to seek approval of the Board of Directors' proposed actions:

1. Require Member vote to buy or lease real estate in excess of \$250,000.
2. Require Member vote to place a mortgage on or similar financial obligation on any of the Common Properties or Common Grounds.
3. Require Member vote to spend in excess of \$250,000 annually on any single Capital expenditure or Capital project.
4. Require Member vote to borrow in excess of \$500,000.

February 28, 2012, added Section 6. Maintaining LSLCA Amenities Article XIV. POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

The Board of Directors shall maintain LSLCA current amenities for the purposes they were designed and are being used as of January 1, 2012, and maintain any future amenities for the purposes they were designed and dedicated. With the exception of safety issues, any proposed material change in the purpose or use of amenities will require the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds (2/3) of the Members voting in an election held to approve such change.

October 15, 2012, deleted the terms "Developer and Class B member" to bring our Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws up-to-date and make them reflect that there is no developer or multiple classes of residents, all sections with the word "developer" were omitted, and all sections with references to "class" were omitted.

October 15, 2012, deleted Section 1 Article XIV. POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

- (j) To arrange for garbage and trash collection
- (k) To arrange for fire and police protection
- (l) To maintain unkempt lands or trees
- (m) To supplement municipal services

October 15, 2012, amended Section 1 (b) Article XIV POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS to include, No Board Director shall be hired as a paid employee for the LSLCA during the time they are serving on the Board and for a period of two years following his or her term on the Board. No immediate family member shall be hired as a full time employee of the LSLCA during the time the Board member is serving.

October 15, 2012, added Section 2 Article VI. BOARD OF DIRECTORS, term limits on the Board of Directors.

Shall be limited to serving on the CA Board for not more than three (3) terms, and is limited to serving as president of the Board for three (3) years.

October 15, 2012, amended Section 1 (a) Article XIV POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, changed to one-fifth (1/5) of the voting membership.

October 15, 2012, amended Section 2 Article XXII MEETINGS OF MEMBERS, changed to one-fifth (1/5) of all of the votes of the entire membership who have the right to vote.

October 15, 2013, amended Section 1 (p) Article XIV POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS,

The affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the members voting in an election duly noticed and held with a quorum of one-fifth (1/5) of all the votes of the entire membership to seek approval of such sale or conveyance.

October 15, 2012, added Section 1 (l) Article XIV

LSLCA BY-LAWS

POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS,

However, if the Board approves a new variance (new variance is any variance that has not occurred in the past three years) for an event or activity and if after the event has taken place, 10% of the total membership petitions the Board objecting to the event permitted by the variance, the variance/event is to be put to a vote of the membership on the October ballot for the election of Directors. If approved by a simple majority of the members who voted, the variance may be granted by a future Board. If not, it will not be approved by the Board nor will similar variances be approved by the Board of Directors in future years without a re-vote of the members approving the variance.

October 15, 2012, amended Section 2 (c) Article XV DIRECTORS MEETINGS, changed to by Electronic Notification. All such notices shall be given or sent to the Director's home address or email address as shown on the records of the Association.

October 15, 2012, deleted Section 1 Article XVII COMMITTEES.

The Board of Directors, by resolution adopted by a majority of the directors in office, may designate one or more committees, each of which shall consist to two or more Directors, which committees, to the extent provided in the resolution, shall have and exercise the authority of the Board of Directors in the management of the affairs of the Association, provided, however, that no such committee shall have the authority of the Board of Directors to approve an amendment to the Articles of Incorporation of the Association, to the By-Laws of the Association, or to a plan of merger or consolidation.

October 15, 2012, amended Section 1 Article XIX CERTIFICATES.

The Board of Directors may provide for the issuance of identification cards along with automobile decals evidencing membership to the Association. The Board of Directors may change this system as new technology becomes available. If any Identification Card shall become lost, mutilated, or destroyed, a new Identification Card may be issued therefore upon such terms and conditions as the Board of Directors may determine.

October 15, 2012, added Section 4 Article XXII MEETINGS OF MEMBERS

"Unless otherwise specified"

October 19, 2015, deleted Section 5 Article V
On all property upon which the Lake St. Louis declaration of covenants and restrictions may be recorded, upon the request of the owner of said property a minimum acceptance fee of \$1,000.00 for property of equal value may be negotiated per lot, or per living unit, and will be due and payable to the Association before the recording of the Lake St. Louis Declarations of Covenants and Restrictions.

October 19, 2015, amended Section 6 (a) Article V
Increase late fee for late payment of assessment from \$25.00 to \$50.00. Change late fee to \$50.00.

October 19, 2015, amended Section 1 (i) Article XIV
Change the language to properly reflect the actual situation. Remove "within the property" and replace it with "owned by the C.A."

October 19, 2015, deleted Section 1 (q) Article XIV
Delete language allowing the Board to change the by-Laws without a vote of the Members. Delete section 1(q) "this sub section may not be repealed by the Board of Directors except upon an affirmative vote of at least ¾ of all Directors".

October 19, 2015, amended Section 2 article XXII
Change the words "right to vote" to "control of" and delete "who have the right to vote". In the first change "right to vote" means individual voting one vote per person but many people have more than one vote, as they own multiple properties and have one vote per each property they own.

Section 2 will read with the above changes as follows
"Special Meeting of the Members for any purpose may be called at any time by the Board of Directors or upon written request of the Members who have control of 1/5th of all the votes of the entire Membership".

October 19, 2015, added Section 7 (a) Article XIV POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

Add new section 7(a) as follows: In the spirit of openness and clarity, we will make available the following information.

New section 7 (a) The annual budget of the Association and a copy of the annual audit report shall be available to all Members to review within the C.A. Office during regular business hours.

October 19, 2015, added Section 7 (b) Article XIV POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF

LSLCA BY-LAWS

DIRECTORS.

The Board Of Directors will be required to do a salary review of all employees every five years and will be as follows. Section 7(b) The Board Of Directors shall review at least every five years all staff salaries and benefits starting in 2016 with the goal to be sure they are in line with similar positions in other association of our size.

October 19, 2015, added Section 7 (c) Article XIV POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

This addition to the By-Laws requires Clubs that the insurance company excluded from the C.A. policy provides their own insurance naming the C.A. as a co-insured and reads as follows. Section 7 (d) Any recognized club whose activity is excluded from coverage under the C.A. general insurance policy shall obtain a policy of liability insurance identifying the C.A. as an additional named insured. Such policy shall be in such amount as may be required by the Board of directors with a minimum amount of what the general liability Policy insures the C.A.

October 19, 2015, added Section 3(b) Article XIV

This addition is to clarify what an emergency is and when this emergency fund can be used and is changed as follows. Section 3(b) The Board Of directors will maintain a separate Emergency Reserve Account with funds to be used only for emergency situations or any other uninsured or unplanned damage or loss. Including but not limited to protecting the L.S.L.C.A. interest in Lake Forest. Spending in response to an emergency is not subject to section 5 spending limitations.